

Condensed interim consolidated financial statements

As at and for the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

(Financial information expressed in Canadian dollars unless otherwise noted)

Notice to Reader

These unaudited condensed interim consolidated financial statements for the three and six months ended June 30, 2014, have not been reviewed by an independent reviewer. They have been prepared by Josephine Mining Corp.'s management In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Canada, consistent with prior periods. These unaudited condensed interim consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2013.

Table of contents

Interim consolidated statements of:

Fi	nanc	cial position	1
C	omp	rehensive loss	2
Cl	nang	ges in shareholders' equity	3
Ca	ash f	lows	4
N	ote	s to the consolidated financial statements	
1.		Nature and continuance of operations	5
2.	. (Going concern	5
3.		Significant accounting policies	5
	(a)	Statement of compliance	
	(b)	Basis of preparation	
	(c)	Basis of consolidation	
	(d)	Recent accounting pronouncements	
	(e)	Application of new and revised accounting standards	
4.		Mineral properties	
5.	. 1	nvestment in associate	7
6.		Related party transactions	8
٠.	(a)	Russell Mining Corporation ("RMC")	
	(b)	Big Rock Holdings ("BRH")	
	(c)	St. Augustine Gold and Copper Limited ("SAGC")	
	(d)	Norton Rose Canada LLP ("NRC")	
	(e)	Transactions with key management and directors	
	(f)	Disposition of 79% of Turner	9
	(g)	Finder's Agreement	9
	(h)	Summary of other related party transactions	9
7.	. 5	Share capital and reserves	10
	(a)	Authorized share capital	
	(b)	Common shares and share capital	
	(c)	Contributed surplus	
	(d)	Option reserves	
	(e)	Warrant reserves	11
8.	. E	Earnings (loss) per share ("EPS")	11
	(a)	Basic EPS	11
	(b)	Diluted EPS	11
9.		Capital risk management	11

	Notes	Ju	ne 30, 2014	Decemb	per 31, 2013
Assets					
Current assets					
Cash and cash equivalents		\$	3,804	\$	14,147
Prepaid and other current assets			3,280		130
Total current assets		\$	7,084	\$	14,277
Non-current assets					
Mineral properties	4	\$	2,243,293	\$	2,243,293
Investment in associate	5		1,940,278		1,882,327
Total non-current assets			4,183,571		4,125,620
Total assets		\$	4,190,655	\$	4,139,897
Liabilities and shareholders' equity					
Current liabilities					
Accounts payable		\$	71,416	\$	90,093
Due to related parties	6(h)		243,604		165,110
Convertible note payable to related party	6(a)		58,384		
Total current liabilities		\$	373,404		255,203
Shareholders' equity					
Share capital	7(b)	\$	7,276,901	\$	7,276,901
Contributed surplus	7(c)		167,722		167,722
Option reserves	7(d)		798,574		798,574
Warrant reserves	7(e)		3,609,239		3,609,239
Accumulated other comprehensive income					
attributable to shareholders			129,594		124,541
Accumulated deficit			(8,164,779)		(8,092,283)
Total shareholders' equity			3,817,251		3,884,694
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity		\$	4,190,655	\$	4,139,897
Going concern	2				
Commitments and contingencies	6				
Events after the reporting period	10				
The accompanying notes are an integral part of	of these unaudit	ted conde	nsed interim	consolid	ated
Approved on behalf of the Board of Directors:					
"SIGNED"	"SIGNED"				
Robert L. Russell	James O'Neil				
Director	Director				

Josephine Mining Corp. (an exploration stage company) Interim consolidated statements of comprehensive loss Three and six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 (Unaudited and presented in Canadian dollars)

		Tł	ree months e	ended J	une 30,	Six months ended June 30,				
	Notes		2014		2013		2014		2013	
Operating expenses										
General and administrative		\$	50,122	\$	105,133	\$	77,530	\$	256,226	
Exploration			-		5,337		83		12,501	
Share-based payments	7(d)		-		7,330		-		48,487	
Depreciation			-		7,526		-		13,115	
Total operating expenses		\$	50,122	\$	125,326	\$	77,613	\$	330,329	
Other income and expense										
Otherincome		\$	-	\$	-	\$	10,636	\$	-	
Interest expense			(808)		(38,655)		(808)		(77,056)	
Foreign exchange gain (loss)			2,067		688		2,094		595	
Total other income (expense)		\$	1,259	\$	(37,967)	\$	11,922	\$	(76,461)	
Loss from investment in associate	5, 6(f)	\$	3,314	\$	-	\$	6,805	\$	-	
Net loss		\$	(52,177)	\$	(163,293)	\$	(72,496)	\$	(406,790)	
Attributable to shareholders	6(f)		(52,177)		(145,402)		(72,496)		(388,899)	
Attributable to non-controlling interest	6(f)		-		(17,891)		-		(17,891)	
Total		\$	(52,177)	\$	(163,293)	\$	(72,496)	\$	(406,790)	
Other comprehensive income (loss)										
Attributable to shareholders	6(f)		(68,773)		16,041		5,053		4,971	
Attributable to non-controlling interest	6(f)		-		(5,652)		-		(5,652)	
Total comprehensive income (loss)		\$	(120,950)	\$	(152,904)	\$	(67,443)	\$	(407,471)	
Net loss per common share, basic and diluted	8	\$	(0.01)	\$	(0.01)	\$	0.00	\$	(0.02)	
Weighted average common shares outstanding	5,									
basic and diluted			25,551,010		25,551,010		25,551,010		25,551,000	

 $The\ accompanying\ notes\ are\ an\ integral\ part\ of\ these\ unaudited\ condensed\ interim\ consolidated\ financial\ statements.$

Josephine Mining Corp. (an exploration stage company) Interim consolidated statements of changes in equity Six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 (Unaudited and presented in Canadian dollars)

			Shareholder										Non-controlling interest			
				Со	ntributed	Option	Warrant	Accumulated	Accumu	lated other			Accumula	ted other		
	Notes	Shares	Share capital		surplus	reserves	reserves	deficit	compret	ensive loss	In	subsidiary	comprehe	nsive loss	Total	
Balance, January 1, 2013		25,551,010	\$ 7,276,901	\$	167,722	\$750,087	\$3,609,239	\$ (4,956,512)	\$	(64,781)	\$	-	\$	-	\$6,782,656	
Share-based payments	7(d)	-	-		-	48,487	-	-		-		-		-	48,487	
Sale of investment in subsidiary to related party	6(f)	-	-		-	-	-	-		-		400,000		-	400,000	
Net loss for the period		-	-		-	-	-	(388,899)		-		(17,891)		-	(406,790)	
Other comprehensive loss for the period		-	-		-	-	-	-		4,971		-		(5,652)	(681)	
Balance, June 30, 2013		25,551,010	\$ 7,276,901	\$	167,722	\$798,574	\$3,609,239	\$ (5,345,411)	\$	(59,810)	\$	382,109	\$	(5,652)	\$6,823,672	
Balance, January 1, 2014		25,551,010	\$ 7,276,901	\$	167,722	\$798,574	\$3,609,239	\$ (8,092,283)	\$	124,541	\$	-	\$	-	\$3,884,694	
Net loss for the period		-	-		-	-	-	(72,496)		-		-		-	(72,496)	
Other comprehensive income for the period		-	-		-	-	-	-		5,053		-		-	5,053	
Balance, June 30, 2014		25,551,010	\$ 7,276,901	\$	167,722	\$798,574	\$3,609,239	\$ (8,164,779)	\$	129,594	\$	-	\$	-	\$3,817,251	

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited condensed interim consolidated financial statements.

		Six months ended June 30,						
	Notes		2014		2013			
Cash flows from operating activities								
Net loss		\$	(72,496)	\$	(406,790)			
Share-based payments	7(d)		-		48,487			
Foreign currency translation			(2,075)		3,624			
Amortization of note discount	6(b)		-		50,686			
Depreciation			-		13,115			
Loss from investment in associate	5		6,805		-			
Changes in assets and liabilities								
Decrease (increase) in prepaid and other current assets			(3,150)		-			
Accrued interest expense, unpaid	6(a)		756		26,359			
Net cash used by operating activities		\$	(70,160)	\$	(264,519)			
Cash flows from investing activities								
Payments toward mineral properties	4	\$	-	\$	(461,944)			
Changes in non-cash working capital			(18,677)		118,866			
Payments of deposits			-		(2,628)			
Gain from asset disposal			-		(1,539)			
Net cash used by investing activities		\$	(18,677)	\$	(347,245)			
Cash flows from financing activities								
Sale of investment in subsdiary	6(f)	\$	-	\$	400,000			
Short-term debt financing			-		50,458			
Increase in due to related parties			78,494		159,716			
Net cash provided by financing activities		\$	78,494	\$	610,173			
Decrease in cash			(10,343)		(1,591)			
Cash, beginning of period			14,147		4,596			
Cash, end of period		\$	3,804	\$	3,005			

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited condensed interim consolidated financial statements.

1. Nature and continuance of operations

Josephine Mining Corp. (the "Company" or "JMC") was incorporated on June 4, 2007, under the Business Corporations Act of British Columbia and is in the exploration stage. The registered office of the Company is 1000 - 595 Burrard Street - P.O. Box 49290 - Vancouver, British Columbia, Canada V7X 158.

The Company's activities relate to the retention and exploration of mineral properties known as the Turner Gold Property (the "Project" or "Turner"), located in southern Oregon, and other assets as management identifies new opportunities.

2. Going concern

These condensed interim consolidated financial statements, prepared at and for the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 ("Financial Statements") have been prepared assuming the Company will continue as a going concern, which contemplates the realization of assets and discharge of liabilities in the normal course of business. The Company earns no operating revenues and has incurred an accumulated deficit of approximately \$8.2 million through June 30, 2014 (December 31, 2013 – approximately \$8.1 million). Further, the Company had a working capital deficit of approximately \$370,000 at June 30, 2014 (December 31, 2013 – approximately \$240,000). These and other factors raise doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. The ability of the Company to continue as a going concern is dependent upon obtaining necessary financing to complete exploration activities and placement of a mineral property into commercial production. Management intends to complete additional financing, but while the Company has been successful in raising funds from related parties and other private parties in the past, there can be no assurance that it will be able to do so in the future. There can be no objective reliance on continuing support from related parties, which has been essential for the Company's development. The Financial Statements do not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of recorded assets, or the amounts and classification of liabilities that might be necessary in the event the Company cannot continue in existence.

In 2013, as a result of the Company's insolvency and inability to raise funds in public markets, the Company sold 79% of its sole potential cash generating unit, at a material loss, to companies owned and operated by officers, owners and directors who are also officers, owners and directors of the Company. The transaction resulted in a loss of control, deconsolidation and accounting for the retained interest as an investment in an associate (Note 5).

3. Significant accounting policies

(a) Statement of compliance

These Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with International Accounting Standard 34 – Interim Financial Reporting ("IAS 34") using accounting policies consistent with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") and its interpretations including International Accounting Standards ("IAS") prevailing as of June 30, 2014, as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB") and interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee.

These Financial Statements have been prepared following the same accounting policies and methods of computation as the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2013. The disclosures provided below are incremental to those included with the annual consolidated financial statements and certain disclosures, which are normally required to be included in the notes to the annual consolidated financial statements, have been condensed or omitted. These Financial Statements should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto in the Company's annual filings for the year ended December 31, 2013.

These Financial Statements were approved by the Company's board of directors on August 21, 2014.

(b) Basis of preparation

These Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments measured at fair value. References to United States dollars are indicated by "US\$."

Certain amounts have been reclassified to conform to current presenation.

(c) Basis of consolidation

(i) Subsidiaries

The Financial Statements include the accounts of the Company and 0890810 B.C. Ltd. ("0890810"), the Company's wholly-owned subsidiary. Intercompany balances and transactions are eliminated in the preparation of the Financial Statements.

(d) Recent accounting pronouncements

Pronouncement	Effective date	Adoption date	Summary impact	of
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments This guidance was issued as the first step in its project to replace IAS 39 - Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. IFRS 9 introduces new requirements for classifying and measuring financial assets and new rules for hedge accounting; as a result of amendments in the current year there is no set date for adoption, however, early adoption is permitted. The IASB intends to expand IFRS 9 during the intervening period to add new requirements for classifying and measuring financial liabilities, de-recognition of financial instruments, impairment and hedge accounting.	Annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018		To be determined	

(e) Application of new and revised accounting standards

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets (Amendments to IAS 36)	Annual periods beginning on or	January 1, 2014	No material
Amends IAS 36 Impairment of Assets to reduce the circumstances in which the recoverable amount of assets or cash-generating units is required to be disclosed, clarify the disclosures required, and to introduce an explicit requirement to disclose the discount rate used in determining impairment (or reversals) where recoverable amount (based on fair value less costs of disposal) is determined using a present value technique.	after January 1, 2014		impact

4. Mineral properties

The following is a continuity schedule for the Company's investment in mineral properties.

	June 30, 2014	December 3	1, 2013
Balance, beginning of period	\$ 2,243,293	\$ 7,8	47,658
Exchange rate variances	-	3	86,993
Derecognition upon loss of control of subsidiary (i)	-	(5,9	91,358)
Balance, end of period	\$ 2,243,293	\$ 2,2	43,293

(i) During 2013, the Company sold 79% of its interest in Turner by way of the sale of 79% of its shares in its wholly owned subsidiary, Gold Coast Mining Inc. ("GCM") to related parties.

Management did not identify any indicators of impairment at June 30, 2014, and as such, no impairment expense was recognized.

5. Investment in associate

The Company retained 21% of the common shares of GCM, a formerly consolidated subsidiary. The transaction that resulted in this interest is described at Note 6(f). The Company's interest in GCM represents the Company's remaining interest in the Project, which has been the Company's sole exploration project since the Company's recapitalization in 2011.

The aggregate financial information, acknowledging the fair value adjustments made at the time of loss of control, in respect of the Company's associate is set out below:

(Interim financial information is unaudited and presented in Canadian dollars unless otherwise noted)

Item	June 30, 2014	December 31, 2013
Current assets	\$ 13,651	\$ 5,631
Non-current assets	14,420,240	14,378,319
Current liabilities	(5,469,125)	(5,420,491)
Net assets	\$ 8,964,765	\$ 8,963,459
Proportionate share of net assets, 21%	\$ 1,882,601	\$ 1,882,327
Additions to basis	57,677	-
Carrying amount on statement of financial position	\$ 1,940,278	\$ 1,882,327
Net loss Foreign exchange translation gain	\$ (32,405) 33,710	\$ - -
Comprehensive income	\$ 1,305	\$ -
Proportionate share of net loss, 21%	\$ (6,805)	\$ -
Proportionate share of comprehensive income, 21%	\$ 7,079	\$ -

6. Related party transactions

Key management personnel, or their related parties, hold positions in other entities that result in them having control or significant influence over the financial or operating policies of those entities.

The following entities transacted with the Company in the reporting period of these Financial Statements. The terms and conditions of the transactions with key management personnel and their related parties were no more favorable than those available, or which might reasonably be expected to be available, on similar transactions to non-key management personnel related entities at an arm's length basis.

(a) Russell Mining Corporation ("RMC")

RMC is a private corporation which owns 10,600,010 shares in the Company and owns 51% of the Turner mineral rights by way of 51% of GCM's (Note 5; Note 6(f)) common shares. RMC's management has owners, officers and directors in common with the Company and BRH (Note 6(b)). RMC charges JMC for administrative and investor relations services.

On September 26, 2012, the Company issued a note payable to GCM for US\$50,000; during the six months ended June 30, 2014, the note and accrued interest were transferred to the Company. The note is convertible into shares of the Company at \$0.125 per common share. The note has no specified maturity date and bears interest at the prime interest rate plus 2%. The principal and accrued interest totaled \$58,384 at June 30, 2014 (December 31, 2013 – nil, as GCM was not consolidated with the accounts of the Company). RMC was issued 100,000 shares ("Finance Shares"), fair-valued on the grant date at \$12,500 as part of consideration for the note. The Company accrued \$756 in interest payable on this note during the six months ended June 30, 2014. Accrued and unpaid interest of GCM reported during the six months ended June 30, 2013 of \$26,359 included \$1,341 related to the convertible note payable to RMC.

(b) Big Rock Holdings ("BRH")

BRH is a private corporation which owns 28% of the Turner mineral rights by way of 28% of GCM's (Note 5; Note 6(f)) common shares. BRH has owners, officers and directors in common with the Company and RMC.

During the six months ended June 30, 2013, GCM (Note 6(f)) was a consolidated subsidiary of the Company, and the Company consolidated \$26,359 in interest amortization from a note payable by GCM to BRH.

(c) St. Augustine Gold and Copper Limited ("SAGC")

SAGC is a Toronto Stock Exchange registrant which has owners, officers and directors in common with the Company, RMC and BRH. Further, the Company utilized the services of SAGC's corporate staff until March 31, 2013, which was billed by

Josephine Mining Corp. (an exploration stage company)
Condensed notes to the interim consolidated financial statements
For the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

(Interim financial information is unaudited and presented in Canadian dollars unless otherwise noted)

SAGC to the Company at terms which approximate market terms for similar services. All such charges after March 31, 2013, with were charged by RMC, which made payments directly to SAGC and passed charges on to the Company.

(d) Norton Rose Canada LLP ("NRC")

NRC is the Company's securities counsel, and a principal of the firm is the Company's corporate secretary.

(e) Transactions with key management and directors

The aggregate value of transactions with key management was as follows:

	Three mo	nths	s ended June 30,	Six months ended June 30,				
	2014		2013	2014		2013		
Officer compensation and director fees (i)	\$ 4,320	\$	46,629	\$	7,648	\$	97,707	
Share-based payments	-		7,329		-		41,536	
Total	\$ 4,320	\$	53,958	\$	7,648	\$	139,243	

(i) The expenses incurred during the six months ended June 30, 2014 had not been paid as at the end of the period.

(f) Disposition of 79% of Turner

Effective December 31, 2013, management finalized the reduction of 79% of the Company's interest in Turner by way of the sale of 51% of the common shares of the Company's previously wholly owned subsidiary (GCM) and a settlement of debt for 28% of the common shares in GCM. The sale of GCM shares was made to companies owned and operated by individuals who are also officers and owners of the Company. A loss of \$2,487,162 was reported in 2013 as a result of the loss of control of GCM. The Company received total consideration of US\$1,605,421 under the terms of this transaction. Consideration from this transaction was used to cause GCM to own an undivided interest in Turner.

The Company's interest in GCM is reported as an investment in associate at June 30, 2014 (Note 5).

During the six months ended June 30, 2013, the Company sold 21% of GCM for \$400,000, which resulted in a non-controlling interest. Accordingly, the Company reported net and comprehensive losses attributable to the non-controlling interest for the three and six months ended June 30, 2013. As described above, the Company sold addition equity in GCM after June 30, 2013, such that the Company had disposed of an aggregate 79% of GCM. This sale and resulting loss in control caused the Company to have no net or comprehensive loss attributable to a non-controlling interest; rather, during the three and six months ended June 30, 2014, the Company reports its proportionate share of GCM's (an associate investee) net loss.

(g) Finder's Agreement

On June 22, 2009, the Company entered into a finder's agreement with RMC for mining claims located in Josephine County, Oregon. Pursuant to this agreement, RMC agreed to advance the Company funds and provide the technical support to complete a reserve study on the claims. The agreement also contemplates RMC and the Company entering into a management agreement for RMC to provide technical and administrative services to the Company.

When production begins on the Turner Gold Property, US\$1,500,000 is due to RMC in 24 equal installments.

(h) Summary of other related party transactions

Expenses incurred	Thr	ee months	ended June 30,	Six months ended June 30,				
		2014		2013	2014	2013		
SAGC (Note 6(c))	\$	-	\$	-	\$ -	\$ 41,819		
RMC		7,941		52,230	32,688	61,450		
Norton Rose		4,923		5,475	9,328	5,475		
Totals	\$	12,864	\$	57,705	\$ 42,016	\$ 108,744		

For the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

(Interim financial information is unaudited and presented in Canadian dollars unless otherwise noted)

Balances payable	June 30, 2014		Decen	December 31, 2013		
SAGC	\$	-	\$	42,517		
RMC		100,189		26,360		
GCM (i)		52,777		-		
Norton Rose		90,638		96,233		
Totals	\$	243,604	\$	165,110		

(i) In Note 10 (Events after the reporting period) to the Company's financial statements as at and for the three months ended March 31, 2014, the Company announced the receipt of approximately \$60,000, under loan terms which were not finalized. Ultimately, GCM was loaned this cash instead of the Company, and GCM (Note 6(f)) settled some of the Company's liabilities during the three months ended June 30, 2014.

7. Share capital and reserves

(a) Authorized share capital

As at June 30, 2014, the Company's authorized share capital was comprised of an unlimited number of common shares and preferred shares without par value.

(b) Common shares and share capital

No shares were issued during the six months ended June 30, 2014 or 2013.

(c) Contributed surplus

There were no changes to contributed surplus during the six months ended June 30, 2014 or 2013.

(d) Option reserves

The Company has a stock option plan (the "Plan"), under which it is authorized to grant options to directors, officers, consultants or employees of the Company. The number of options granted under the Plan is limited to 10% in the aggregate of the number of issued and outstanding common shares of the Company at the date of the grant of the options. The board of directors has discretion over the vesting of options.

Option reserves remained unchanged at \$798,574 as at June 30, 2014, because all outstanding options have fully vested. During the six months ended June 30, 2013, there was an increase of \$48,487 attributable to vesting of share options issued under the Plan.

	Exercise price	
Option continuity schedule	range	Number
Balance, January 1, 2013	\$0.30 - \$0.60	2,554,000
Expired	\$0.50 - \$1.00	(754,000)
Balance, December 31, 2013	\$0.50 - \$0.60	1,800,000
Balance, June 30, 2014	\$0.50 - \$0.60	1,800,000

Summary of options outstanding and exercisable as at June 30 2014:

			Weighted	Weighted
			average	average
Exer	cise	Number	exercise	remaining
price	es	outstanding	price	years
\$	0.50	1,400,000	\$ 0.50	1.74
\$	0.60	400,000	0.60	1.96
Tota	ls	1,800,000	\$ 0.52	1.79

(e) Warrant reserves

There were no changes to warrant reserves during the six months ended June 30, 2014 or during the year ended December 31, 2013.

Warrant continuity schedule	Exercise price range	Number
Balance, January 1, 2013	\$0.10 - \$2.00	19,750,500
Expired	\$0.10 - \$0.75	(9,250,500)
Balance, December 31, 2013	\$0.10 - \$2.00	10,500,000
Balance, June 30, 2014	\$0.10 - \$2.00	10,500,000

Summary of warrants outstanding and exercisable as at June 30, 2014:

				Weighted
			Weighted	average
	Number		average	remaining
Exercise price	exercisable	Expiry date	exercise price	years
1.50	5,250,000	March 24, 2016	1.50	1.73
2.00	5,250,000	March 24, 2016	2.00	1.73
	10,500,000		1.75	1.73

8. Earnings (loss) per share ("EPS")

(a) Basic EPS

Basic EPS is computed by dividing net loss for a period by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during that period.

(b) Diluted EPS

Diluted EPS is computed by dividing net loss for a period by the diluted number of common shares. Diluted common shares include the effects of instruments, such as share options and warrants, which could cause the number of common shares outstanding to increase.

The Company reported net losses for the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013; the Company has accordingly presented basic and diluted EPS, which are the same, on a single line in the statements of comprehensive loss. Diluted loss per share did not include the effect of share purchase options and warrants as they were anti-dilutive.

9. Capital risk management

The following table summarizes capital under the Company's capital management program:

	June 30, 2014	December 31, 2013
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 3,804	14,147
Convertible note payable to related party	58,384	-
Share capital	7,276,901	7,276,901
Option reserves	798,574	798,574
Contributed surplus	167,722	167,722
Warrant reserves	3,609,239	3,609,239

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's ability to continue exploration of its mineral property and to maintain a flexible capital structure which optimizes the costs of capital.

The Company is not subjected to any internally or externally imposed capital requirements.

Management implements adjustments according to changes in economic conditions and risk characteristics of capital instruments. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may attempt to issue new shares and acquire or dispose of assets.

When available cash permits, the Company invests in highly liquid, short-term interest-bearing investments.